RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON

CLERK'S OFFICE

94551-9

No. 74871-8-I

5/26/2017 4:50 pm

RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY

In the Supreme Court of the State of Washington

Elias Haydari, et al. Respondent

V.

Concepción Hermosillo-Azdamanesh Petitioner

Petition for Review

James A. Wexler, WSBA #7411 2700 NW Pine Cone Drive, Suite 314 Issaquah, Washington 98027 206-849-9455; wex@seanet.com Attorney for Petitioner Concepción Hermosillo-Azdamanesh

I. Identity of Petitioner

The petitioner is Concepcion Hermosillo Azadmanesh (Hermosillo).

II. Court of Appeals Decision for Which Review Is Requested

Petitioner Hermosillo seeks review of the unpublished Opinion of Washington Court of Appeals Division I issued on April 24, 2017 in the case of *Elias Haydari and Amir Bahandari, Respondents v. Concepcion Hermosillo Azadmanesh*, Appellant, Washington Court of Appeals Division One Case Number 74871-I, terminating review of Petitioner Hermosillo's appeal from judgment in favor of Respondents from Snohomish County Superior Court Case Number 16-2-0214-1

III. Issues Presented for Review

- 1. In an unlawful detainer action is Hermosillo entitled to a jury trial as mandated by RCW 59.12.130 on issues of fact set forth in Hermosillo's Answer to a Complaint for Unlawful Detainer in which the homeowner challenges the authority of the Trustee that issued a Trustee's Deed Upon Sale to purchaser Respondent to prevent issuance of a writ of restitution when the property sold is encumbered by pending litigation that Respondents had actual and constructive notice of prior to the sale and the lis pendens litigation asserts violations of the DTA RCW 61.24.130; RCW 61.24.127 (2)(c) and (e); and RCW 61.24.050(1).
- COA I erred by rejecting the demand for a jury trial claiming the pre-sale defenses were waived even though they were timely

- presented before the sale. Is it a "waiver' of defenses where they are presented but rejected even when subject to reversal on appeal.
- 3. COA I erred by relying solely on *Brown et al. v. Department of Commerce*. Washington Supreme Court Case No. 90652-1; 359 P.3d 771 (2016), notwithstanding that violations of the DTA can void a sale even when the Person Entitled to Enforce ("PETE") held the note but did not own the note.

IV. Statement of the Case

A. Acceptance of Review authorized by RAP 13.4(b)(4).

1. Issue of substantial public interest.

The *Hermosillo* COA I unlawful detainer decision along with the *Brown, supra* decision affects the way every non-judicial foreclosure proceeding in Washington is conducted. RCW 59.12.130 (Unlawful Detainer ("UD")); RCW 4.28.320 (Lis Pendens ("LP")); RCW 61.24.050(1), RCW 61.24.127(2)(c), (e), RCW 61.24.130 (Deed of Trust Act ("DTA")); RCW 64.04.010 and RCW 65.04.020 (Deed Conveyance Act("DCA")); RCW 19.86 et seq. (Consumer Protection Act ("CPA")); and contract common law, provide a seamless legislative directive and legal guideline that can void a trustee's sale without seeking a reversal of *Brown, infra*. Otherwise, over time, thousands of homeowners in Washington will be removed from their homes even though the foreclosing entity is foreclosing in violation of the mandatory requirements of the statutes cited herein and cases cited herein. This case is of substantial public interest affecting every non-judicial foreclosure

relying exclusively on Brown, supra.

2. Right to trial by jury is constitutional.

The legislature knew in adopting the DTA and linking it to the unlawful detainer statute without excluding trial by jury at a unlawful detainer forum that property should not be lost where no jury has previously determined the case.

3. Waiver is the intentional and voluntary relinquishment of a known right.

Petitioner seeks to clarify that the purchaser and subsequent purchasers of a property acquired at a Trustee's Sale and the issuance and recording of a Trustee's Deed Upon Sale are subject to being reversed and voided where a borrower prevails ultimately on appeals that the DTA was violated. Exceptions to RCW 61.24.050(1) exist, as provided in Supreme Court case, including, inter alia, Albice, Schroeder, Cox, Udall, McHugh, infra. Udall, Bremner, Sargent et al Respondents v. T.D. Escrow Services, Inc. and T.D. Service Financial Corporation, Appellants, 132 Wash. App. 290, COA 2 (2006) (Courts must strictly apply and interpret the DTA in favor of the borrower. RCW 64.24.050.); Albice v. Premier Mortgage Services of Washington, Inc., Option One Mortgage Corporation et al, 174 Wn. 2d 560 (2017); Schroeder v. Excelsior Management Group LLC et al v Haberthur Trustee et al. 177 Wash.2d 94 (2013); Cox v. Helenius et al, 103 Wn.2d 383 (1985), (Supreme Court held trustee has fiduciary duty to debtor and beneficiary to not accept grossly inadequate sale price); Schroeder citing McHugh v. Church, 583

P.2d 210 (Alaska 1978).

In Federal National Mortgage Insurance Association (FNMA) v. Ndiaye, Washington Court of Appeals, Division Three, Case No. 3299401-III (2015) the COA III held that defenses held to be violations of the DTA raised are "not waived" where such defenses are argued timely before the sale. Denial of the injunction to stop sale is not a waiver. Denial of a defense to Summary Judgment is not a waiver. A waiver should be deemed to exist only where no effort is made to assert such defenses known or that should be deemed to be known but not asserted. Where the effort is pursuant to and in compliance with the statutory procedures and the pre-foreclosure notices of the trustee the effort should not be label a "waiver" equivalent to actual waivers/failures to act.

V. Argument

A. Legal Background

1. Unlawful Detainer Actions

The legislature is presumed to know that the incorporation of the UD provisions in the statutes affecting a wrongful non-judicial foreclosure holdover homeowner were designed to be enforced on an expedited basis to be consistent with the expedited non-judicial expedited foreclosure process for the same reasons. This includes invoking the expedited jury demand of the UD statute. The courts give full effect to legislative intent.

As stated by the COA I, due to the summary nature of the UD proceedings the issues are limited to possession. The court

however did not recognize the possessory issues raised by Hermosillo in her Answer to the UD Complaint. The DTA provides a clear limit on the authority of what a trustee can convey by sale. That limit to be to whatever the trustee had. RCW 61.24.050(1). If it is determined the trustee had nothing to convey or no authority to convey it, then the possession of the property subject to the UD action is void and the possession reversed in favor of the homeowner. In essence the Trustee is issuing a quit claim deed where it is transferring its interests, whatever they may be and which may be nothing. That is the essence of the Lis Pendens statute and cases. RCW 4.28.320 and RCW 4.28.325, and cases, infra. They provide that the purchaser at a trustee sale and any subsequent purchasers acquire the property subject to the pending litigation which they have constructive notice of the pending litigation by the recordation of the lis pendens and/or where the purchasers have actual notice and/or by the exercise of reasonable inquiry would have actual notice. If any of the issues in that pending case are resolved in favor of the homeowner that determination will void the ownership, possession and rights of the purchase at the trustee sale or their subsequent transferees.

Contrary to the Opinion of the COA I, Appellant did present as part of the CP, transcripts were made available to the Statement of Arrangements with the various court reporters. This court should accept review or remand to have the court review the

transcripts. Facts they "found" are simply not correct. For example in the arguments which are part of the CP, the factual evidence presented by Respondents in Support of their UD Complaint and Response to Motions for Reconsideration and at the Supersedeas bond hearings were refuted in detail. For example, Respondents presented exhibits all of which were analyzed by Appellant realizing that the Respondent admitted they had conducted extensive due diligence which appellant refute. Respondent had actual notice of the pending issues with notice in their own documentary exhibits for example a title report they acquired before the sale notified them that the title was not warranted for defects or encumbrances that could be discovered by the simplest of inspections of the property, including that they make inquiry at the property address. They could easily have called or met with the trustee and simply inquired if the trustee was aware of any encumbrances are litigation. Since the trustee was a party to the suit filed before the sale, that simple inquiry would have rebutted their argument they could not discover the litigation before the sale. The Respondents both spoke with me immediately after the sale and I advised them they should get aa counsel because if they did due diligence that should have included a simple inquiry to the trustee. I suggested their counsel would advise them —on the extent they were duped by the trustee who intentionally failed to advise buyers of the known risk of the

pending litigation the Deed they issued on sale also is notice to the respondent that the Respondents admit they conducted their own due diligence and that but the Deed did not recite the facts of the status of the property and risks the buyer undertook. Because the respondents took the property subject to actual and constructive notice of pending litigation they are not a Bona Fide Purchaser (BFP). The Court analysis that Respondents were BFP's and the comments raise a serious question regarding a misunderstanding of to who their comments should have been directed. The COA I specifically rejected Respondent's brief notifying both parties that the respondents (not Appellant) had referred to pleadings in another matter and tried to incorporate them by reference.

The NOTS was flawed. However, the NOTS does confirm that at least one assignment occurred and needed to be proven notwithstanding *Brown*.

The legislature intended the statutes noted to be seamlessly applied. The expedited jury demand within the UD action assures the homeowner that their constitutional right of due process is met when they may invoke by making the demand under RCW 59.12.130. The statutory language is mandatory as the COA recited at page 4 line 3-4, "...whenever an issue of fact is presented by the pleadings it must be tried by a jury".

The DTA is strictly construed because of the expedited nature of the non-judicial proceedings which has no judicial

oversight. *Albice, Schroeder, Udall, Cox infra.* The court specifically stated that because a UD is summary in nature, the proceedings are limited to resolving questions related to possession of property and related issues like restitution of possession and rent. *Barr v. Young*, 8 Wn. App 105 (2015).

Hermosillo submits that the possessory issues include all issues where the possession arises from a DTA determination that the trustee never had any interests or the power to convey possession. The court erred by not even mentioning RCW 61.24.050(1) or the cases applying it as supporting the statutory right to jury trial on such issues affecting possession. The duality of the issue of ownership and possession in the DTA strictly construed context, must be recognized by the court where those issues are so crucial to the possession of real estate and the finality intended to result from the determination of such issues of fact.

2. The DTA and Unlawful Detainer

The court held that if the borrower breaches the obligations owed to the lender the trustee may foreclose on the property in a trustee sale. COA Ruling at p 4 line 17-18. Where the borrower challenges that it owes an obligation to the alleged lender then until that is resolved there is no right to foreclose and sell the property.

The court failed or erred in their analysis to even reference the RCW 61.24.050(1) limitations on the trustee, vis-a-vis what

possessory rights it has in the property it sells at the trustee's sale.

The COA references that the statement in the deed executed at the trustee sale is prima, facie evidence of compliance with the DTA to a bona fide purchaser. COA ruling at p 5 line 2-3. Prima facie evidence however is rebuttable. Where there is a lis pendens notice recorded or other actual or constructive notice regarding the existence of pending litigation available to the purchaser at or prior to the trustee sale, the purchaser can verify the extent of the interest being conveyed by the trustee by the sale and issues related to ultimate possession. This includes the relatively simple inquiry directly to the trustee if it is aware of any litigation challenging the trustee's authority and the nature, extent of its interests being conveyed by the sale. This is especially relevant since the Notice of Trustee Sale by RCW 61.24.050(1)(f, incorporates relevant text raising the issue of possession the nature and extent of the quality of the title and encumbrances on the property thereby putting the purchasers on notice prior to the sale and placing the duty on any bidder to make such inquiry. Section V of the Notice of Trustee Sale regarding the sale of the property specifically states "The sale will be made without warranty, express or implied regarding title, possession, or

encumbrances..." RCW 61.24.050(1)(f). (Emphasis added).

In this case, Hermosillo recorded with the Snohomish County Recording Office and filed with the Snohomish County Clerk of the Superior Court her lis pendens and filed it with the court clerk assuring any purchaser from a trustee sale or their subsequent purchasers were aware of such possessory issues that they took subject to. Recitation in the trustee deed of compliance in the Deed, however, is rebuttable where there is evidence available to the purchaser that such presumption is disputed coupled with the lis pendens and/or evidence readily available to a purchaser prior to the sale combine to put the purchaser and subsequent purchasers from the purchaser at the sale, on notice there is a dispute regarding possession and whether or not the DTA was strictly complied with by the trustee. The presumptive nature of the statement in the Deed by the Trustee that the foreclosure was in compliance with the DTA is rebuttable where the trustee itself is aware of litigation challenging its authority and the nature and extent of its interests it is conveying. The grantor is bound to disclose what defects exist in the property that it is aware of at or prior to the sale to avoid misleading the purchaser and it is a misrepresentation in the Deed to make a statement of compliance when it knows that there is a challenge to the compliance with the DTA.

The court analysis is flawed by not addressing the rebuttable nature of the lis pendens and the statutory intent of the legislative to link the UD, DTA, DCA, CPA and LP in affecting the possession by the borrower of the property which could be lost

without judicial oversight on an expedited basis. The COA is the Trial Court, Court of Appeals and ultimately the Supreme Court combine to be the judicial oversight intended to be available as a matter of right to determine compliance with the DTA and its effect on possession of the property. That judicial oversight, when challenged by the borrower, includes the litigation embodied by the UD action and the UD statutory right to a jury trial of issues raised in the Answer as were raised by Hermosillo that ultimately affect possession. RCW 59.12.130.

3. Remedies for DTA Violations

Hermosillo did pursue pre-sale remedies by filing the required Complaint and filing a motion for injunction. The trial court erred by finding Hermosillo had no standing to challenge whether or not the trustee was properly appointed and the beneficiary legally acquired possession of the note or owned it.

The issues raised in the Answer to the UD and in the trial court and COA pertain ultimately to possession and strict compliance with the DTA as well as compliance with the mandatory UD statutory rights to a jury trial when demanded, as Hermosillo demanded. The lis pendens notice and actual/constructive notices have the effect that the purchaser at a trustee sale take subject to the ultimate results of the pending litigation including a determination that voids the deed and rebut the argument that the Deed issued by the trustee was in compliance

with the DTA.

Further, a borrower does not waive (a voluntary or intentional act) because the trial court denied the motion for injunction. Borrower did assert by taking action which is not a waiver. In *Frizzell v Murray*, COA Division II Case No. 42265-4-II, (2012) the court held that the failure to obtain the injunction *may* waive a defense even if a borrower attempts to obtain a restraining order abut does not succeed. The court in Frizzel, however, further agreed that waive does not apply to all potential claims. Failure to obtain a restraining order may not be deemed a waiver citing four specific types of actions for damages.

1. Failure to trustee to materially comply with the DTA. The court erred in interpreting that "non-waived" claims may not affect in any way the validity of the finality of the foreclose or a subsequent transfer of the property and may not operate o au way to encumber or cloud the title citing RCW 61.24.127(2)(c) and (e).

The analysis ignores the plain statutory language and intent of RCW 61.24.050(1) that the trustee can only transfer the interest it has to a purchaser at the trustee sale. RCW 61.24.050 combined with lis pendens establish that they must be read together to understand the legislative intent that non-waived claims cannot affect the title and possession. In fact, the statutes can only be interpreted that such non-waived defenses (failure to get a preliminary injunction) can be reversed and the possession and

ownership affected.

The court erred in ignoring the interplay and intent of the interacting statutes RCW 61.24.050(10, RCW 4.28.320 and RCW 59.12.100 including strict compliance with the .050 if not found to have occurred do affect possession and ownership.

B. Asserting DTA Violations in an Unlawful Detainer Action

Hermosillo raised issues of fact in the Answer to the UD Complaint that (1) the note was not properly assigned to the Trust that the foreclosure is based upon and had no lawful authority to foreclose and (2) the appointment of a successor trustee (North West Trustee Services ("NWTS") was illegal and ineffective and therefore the trustee's sale did not comply with the DTA procedures.

While the court recognizes that failure to comply with the strict DTA requirements *may* void trustee's sales. RCW 40.16.030.

The court erred by rejecting Hermosillo's claim to assert the non-compliance voided the sale because first, Borrower cannot raise defective title as a defense to possession citing *Ndiaye*, *supra*. COA I reliance on COA III is misplaced. *Ndiaye* actually was held in COA III at page 6 that "in some circumstances" pre-sale defenses *can* be asserted. COA I overlooked the distinction. Pre-sale defenses such as failure to obtain an injunction MAY, as noted above, not be deemed a waiver of such defense. In other

words, the ability to overturn the denial of the injunction can act to void a sale if it the underlying issues of fact re revered such as strict compliance with the DTA. In this case, we reassert that the provision of RCW 61.24.050(1) combined with RCW 4.28.320 and RCW 59.12.100.

The court erred by still finding waiver for not obtaining the injunction, *Ndiaye*, *supra* stated some defenses may be allowed to asserted in the unlawful detainer as stated above they may include failure to obtain the injunction but the court relies on RCW 61.24.127(2)(c),(e) that thereby the legislative provide NO indication in the DTA or in the unlawful detainer statute a borrower can assert DTA violations a defense in an UD action.

As stated above, the court erred in finding no DTA indication by the legislature that the sale could be voided and possession revoked. The specific restriction on the trustee as to what it may convey set forth in RCW 61.24.050(10 is the indication by the legislature of its intent that the DTA does provide for voiding a trustee sale if the trustee is determined to have had nothing to convey being improperly appointed. An issue to be determined by jury trial when all three connected statues are read together to give full effect to their intended interaction.

C. Validity of *Brown supra* Regarding Authority to Enforce Deed of Trust.

Even if Brown is valid, and that the holder of the note can

enforce the deed of trust without owning the Note that is rebuttable.

UCC 1 allows the parties to a note, which is a contract, to define the terms of the contract superseding the provisions of Article 3 of the UCC which provides that a PETE can be a holder.

Here, Lopez contracted through the note that the beneficiary and subsequent legal transfers must hold AND own the note. A 150 year old established legal principle by the US Supreme Court in *Carpenter v. Longan*, 83 U.S. 271 (2872). Further transfers must be legal under Washington law which mandates compliance with the Deed Conveyance Act, RCW 64.04.010 and RCW 65.04.020, that the assignment be of all interests in the Note, for value, in writing, acknowledge and notarized. Absent such legal compliance the transfers are void. Here, the court ignores the UCC contracting right of the parties to the note that the note be held AND owned by the PETE. Brown does not supersede the contracting rights of the parties, or the standing of signers to the note including borrower to challenge transfers to have been legal transfers which in Washington requires compliance with the DCA.

The court erred by relying only on Brown as a basis for foreseeing the possession of the property would not be voided by violation of the DTA requirements the trustee be properly appointed and that the contract provisions of the note control

interpreting that the note must be held **and** owned by the PETE.

In other words, *Brown* is rebuttable.

D. Sale Prohibition under Federal Tax Law

As discussed above the identity of the Real Estate
Investment Mortgage Investment Conduit, 26 U.S.C. 860(D)
("REMIC") federal tax provisions, which when not complied with
affect the investors under the tax laws is independent of the
borrowers standing to challenge compliance of the PSA governing
the conditions under which the Note may be owned by the Trust.

The court cannot enable illegal acts.

The Pooling and Service Agreement ("PSA") that sets forth the terms governing the Trust purportedly owning the Note provides for the borrower to be a third party beneficiary of the PSA as the warranty is provided by the servicer to maximize the value of the trust investment and to modify the borrower's loan where possible. The other provisions of the PSA require that MERS not have been a beneficiary and that the note must have been acquired by the trust within 90 days of closing Here, Lopez provided evidence that the trust closed five years before the note was acquired voiding the ownership interest of the Trust and voiding the authority the trustee may have since it was not properly appointed under by a valid owner.

Finally, the Court erred by basing their opinion and denying the Appellant's motion for a jury trial on issues of fact raised misreading the CP which is replete with the assertion that the underlying case pending was only a Consumer Protection Act cause of action for civil damages. While there were serious CPA violations argued that the non-judicial foreclosure was in violation of the DTA, DCA, and that the documents created and relied on by the trustee and beneficiary were deceptive, false and void which affected the authority of the trustee to conduct the non-judicial foreclosure and the trustee's authority to issue the Deed Upon Sale to Respondents.

IV. Conclusion

The COA I erred in directing issuance of the writ of restitution and denying Lopez a jury trial demanded to resolve issues not resolved in the pending litigation that the Respondent purchased the property from the trustee was subject to and that the possession could be voided.