No. 94551-9

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

CONCEPCION HERMOSILLO,

Petitioner,

v.

ELIAS HAYDARI AND AMIR BAHANDARI,

Respondents

RESPONDENTS ELIAS HAYDARI AND AMIR BAHANDARI'S

ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Joshua Dabling, WSBA #44792
Dabling Law Firm, PLLC
23607 Highway 99 #1B
Edmonds, WA 98026
Telephone: 425-210-5495
JARABAROW@HOTMAIL.COM
Attorney for Respondents Elias Haydari
And Amir Bahandari

I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENTS

Respondents Elias Haydari and Amir Bahandari (together Haydari or Respondents) purchased a house together for the purpose of investment.

II. DECISION OF COURT OF APPEALS

On April 24, 2017, the Court of Appeals Division I filed the unpublished opinion terminating review of the decision of the Superior Court of Snohomish County. On May 26, 2017 Petitioner Concepcion Hermosillo filed a Petition for review by the Supreme Court. Leave to extend the deadline for filing the Petition was granted.

III. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

In Hermosillo's Opening brief to the Court of Appeals Division I she lists two issues: 1. "Whether the Complaint or the trustee's deed provided sufficient factual detail showing QLS was the trustee on December 14, 2015, the date on which QLS executed and issued the trustee's deed" and 2. "Whether [Hermosillo is] Entitled to Jury Trial to Challenge [Haydari's] Right to Possession Claim."

However, in Hermosillo's Petition for review she states a number of issues for which the Court of Appeals did not give an opinion in the Instant Case. Hermosillo states the issues as including whether her

defenses were waived, whether the COA relied too much on *Brown v. Washington State Dept. of Commerce*, 184 Wn.2d 509, 359 P.3d 111 (2015) (a case which was not cited at all in the instant case by the Court of Appeals) and violations of the Deed of Trust Act.

IV. INTRODUCTION

The Petition arises from a Superior Court decision granting Haydari possession of property that was subject to a Deed of Trust granted by Hermosillo. Haydari had purchased the property at foreclosure in December of 2015. Hermosillo remains in possession today due to her challenge of the Superior Court's denial of a jury trial in which she would have, in theory, challenged the validity of the recitals of the Trustee's Deed which grants Haydari possessory rights.

V. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Haydari and Bahandari are partners in fix and flip ventures. After successfully bidding on Hermosillo's home they originally gave Hermosillo time to vacate because it was the December holidays. Hermosillo did not vacate the home but rather remained in possession and recorded a Lis Pendens on the property on December 22, 2015.

Haydari filed for unlawful detainer and based the complaint on obtaining the Trustee's Deed and reliance on its recitals. Hermosillo challenged the complaint at a show cause hearing but did not present evidence that contradicted the recitals. She requested a jury trial to review the case, but was denied both at the show cause hearing and on her request for revision.

Hermosillo has remained in possession through filing a bond with the Superior Court pursuant to RCW 59.12.100. Haydari on the other hand seeks possession of the property as his business interests are adversely affected by Hermosillo remaining in possession.

VI. ARGUMENT

- a. Review is not justified under RAP 13.4
 - i. The Decision of the Court of Appeals does not conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court

The COA was very concise and clear in handling the only two issues for which Hermosillo had requested review. The COA specifically cites in its opinion a few Supreme Court cases which they followed properly.

The COA properly applied *Albice*. Hermosillo failed to bring any evidence to prove that the Trustee was not proper, to show that any other

recital in the Trustee's Deed was insufficient, nor any other evidence to support her claim that Haydari should have been on notice that Quality was not the Trustee. While it is true the Court voided the Trustee Sale in *Albice*, there is no reason to void the Trustee Sale of the property in question here.

Hermosillo claims that "the factual evidence presented by Respondents in Support of their UD Complaint and Response to Motions for Reconsideration and the Supersedeas bond hearings were refuted in detail." However, Hermosillo fails to explain just what evidence should have been considered that would have refuted anything in favor of Hermosillo's claim for possession based on an improper trustee sale.

Hermosillo claims that Respondents could have inquired about the litigation by searching the Superior Court case filings on the name of the Trustee. However, the purpose of the Lis Pendens is to simplify notice to the entire world – including people who are not attorneys and therefore not savvy as to what case pleadings could entail or how to properly conduct a search at the courthouse.

It was entirely the fault of Hermosillo's counsel that a Lis Pendens was not filed with the Auditor before the sale. A Lis Pendens was prepared and filed by November 4, 2015 *in the Superior Court's clerk's*

files, not with the auditor. The Auditor's office is on the same block in Snohomish County – presumably it is a simple act to properly file a Lis Pendens at the same time of filing the lawsuit. The way Hermosillo argues on page ten of her brief, it would seem that she believes she may record with the auditor subsequent to a Trustee's sale and receive the same benefit of notice. This is not the case as it does not follow logically nor does it follow RCW 4.28.320.

The COA properly followed *Cowiche* in that they did not consider new issues raised in Hermosillo's COA Reply Brief (such as Hermosillo's argument raised in her about whether a Trustee's Deed is a negotiable instrument). In a similar fashion, Hermosillo has raised new issues in her Petition that go beyond the issues of her original appeal.

The COA properly applies *Munden* in that they recognized that the issues of Unlawful Detainer actions are limited to issues of possession, not to the myriad other items that Hermosillo argues.

Review of Hermosillo's appeal is not justified for non-compliance with Supreme Court decisions.

- ii. The Decision of the Court of Appeals does not conflict with a decision of the Court of Appeals

The COA properly applied *Holland* in that "Passing treatment of an issue or lack of reasoned argument is insufficient to merit judicial consideration..." Hermosillo has consistently failed to present evidence or reasoned argument based on proper evidence.

Furthermore, *Holland* says "trial court briefs cannot be incorporated into appellate briefs by reference" which Hermosillo attempted through mentioning a wide variety of items were not part of the record.

In her Petition for Review, Hermosillo argues that "Respondent had actual notice of the pending issues with notice in their own documentary exhibits for example a title report they acquired before the sale notified them that the title was not warranted for defects or encumbrances..." (Petitioner's brief, page 6). It is important to take note that no such title report was requested prior to sale, no such title report is in the court files, nor does any such report exist whatsoever. If it did, no Lis Pendens would have appeared on it. It might somehow be convenient for Hermosillo if it had existed were the issue of Possession to be decided based solely on adequate notice of pending litigation. Hermosillo's claim of evidence that exists nowhere in the court files or pleadings, or anywhere else, is telling as to the justification of her demand for jury trial.

The COA properly applied *Indigo* in that they stated a property owner must schedule a show cause hearing in order to get a writ of restitution.

The COA properly applied *Savings* in that they limited the questions to those issues that related to Plaintiff's claim of right to possession.

Hermosillo argues that "the possessory issues include all issues where the possession arises from a DTA determination that the trustee never had any interests or the power to convey possession." Then she fails to present evidence that the Trustee was not the proper Trustee or that the Trustee failed an any particular duty. Hermosillo would have the Court ignore RCW 61.24.040(7) which requires the Court to accept the recitals of the Trustee's Deed as "...prima facie evidence of such compliance and conclusive evidence thereof in favor of bona fide purchasers..." In other words, the Courts are required to accept the Trustee's Deed as correct until proven otherwise. As also noted by the COA, Hermosillo did not challenge whether Respondents were bona fide purchasers (COA decision, page 5).

Review of Hermosillo's appeal is not justified for non-compliance with court of appeal decisions.

iii. The matter does not Involve a Significant Question
of Law Under the Constitution

There is no question of Hermosillo's constitutional rights. Nor has any constitutional right of Hermosillo's been violated. Had Hermosillo provided any inkling of evidence to actually refute claims made in the original complaint it would have been proper to schedule a trial on the merits. However, because there was no "issue of material fact presented by the pleadings" (RCW 59.12.130) there was no need nor right to a trial.

Hermosillo argues that the "trial court erred by finding Hermosillo had no standing to challenge whether or not the trustee was properly appointed and the beneficiary legally acquired possession of the note or owned it." To the contrary, had Hermosillo presented any evidence to contradict the Trustee's Deed by actual presentation of evidence then the Commissioner would have been correct in setting the case for trial pursuant to RCW 59.12.130. Instead of presenting evidence that the Trustee was improper Counsel for Hermosillo made a litany of unsubstantiated claims.

Due to the lack of any violation of Hermosillo's constitutional rights, review is not justified.

iv. This Petition does not involve an Issue of
Substantial Public Interest that Should Be
Determined by the Supreme Court

Hermosillo claims that her appeal involves an issue of substantial public interest in that the *Brown* decision affects the thousands of foreclosure sales. However, she does not explain adequately why the *Brown* decision has anything to do with the instant case. The COA did not cite *Brown* in their decision.

Foreclosures are unfortunate. Foreclosure is a dreadful time in any person's life. However, foreclosure is also adequately handled by the Deed of Trust Act and the surrounding cases. Hermosillo fails to explain in any way why her case in particular has any profound impact on the Public Interest.

Hermosillo argues that "where the borrower challenges that it owes an obligation to the alleged lender then until that is resolved there is no right to foreclose and sell the property." But she fails to cite authority for such a baseless and harmful claim. It is the contractual right and responsibility of the Trustee to execute a foreclosure when a borrower breaches their deed of trust. Barring a court order (such as a temporary restraining order as explained under RCW 61.24.040) the Trustee has no

obligation to pause in its responsibility of enforcing the contract in favor of a beneficiary.

There is no material issue about Hermosillo's case that gives rise to any public concern. Review of Hermosillo's petition is therefore not justified.

b. Additional Argument

Hermosillo asserts arguments regarding waiver of defenses which the Court of Appeals did not address. There was no reliance or citing of the *Ndiaye* case anywhere in the case previous to Hermosillo's Petition for Review. The Court of Appeals did not cite *Brown v. Dep't of Commerce* in their decision in the instant case.

Hermosillo then argues what appears to be an unrelated case mentioning a non-party named Lopez. There are several arguments that Hermosillo raises for the first time that seem entirely unrelated to whether the Court of Appeals correctly denied a jury trial based on the evidence (and lack thereof) as presented.

Haydari is concerned that these obvious errors in Hermosillo's Petition for Review may be viewed and/or argued as mere excusable errors and typos. Opposition to the original unlawful detainer action was

unwarranted. Appealing the decision of the Court of Appeals was damaging and frivolous as there was no merit to Hermosillo's claims. Each additional time delaying action of the Petitioner causes more and more damage to Haydari's business interests.